
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – August 9, 2021   Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Date: August 9, 2021 
Place: Zoom Webinar  
Time: 5:00 p.m. 
             
 

1. Call to Order 
 

A. Roll call 
 

 

2. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg 1 /Agenda 
 

 

3. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
Individuals wishing to comment that are calling in by phone, please press *9 to raise 
your hand.  If connecting by computer, please click the “raise hand” feature. You will 
be notified when it is your turn to speak. Before commenting, please identify yourself 
for the record. You will have three minutes to address the Board.  
 

 

4. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  
 

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Pg 3 /Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of July 26, 2021  
C. Pg 7 /Approval of:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 24 / For Informational Purposed Only – The following electronic payments totaling $3,400,901.94 
are included in Warrants noted above: 

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 11429 to 11468 - $100,869.93 (Included in A/P Warrant 56374) 

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 11469 to 11474 - $870,700.69 (Included in A/P Warrant 56400) 

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 11475 to 11505 - $109,669.99 (Included in A/P Warrant 56412) 

 Employee EFT Contributions/Deductions including all taxes & retirement numbered 51966 to 
52283 - $2,319,661.33 (Included in A/P Warrant 56402) 

 
 

5. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 
 

A. Pg 55 /Resolution No. 21-03 Mid-Year Budget Amendment – FD Robacker 
 

 

6. New Business (First Reading) 
 
 
 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56371 to 56398 totaling $ 190,167.55 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56399 to 56408 totaling $ 4,661,530.82 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56409 to 56430 totaling $ 611,390.92 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107540 to 107547 totaling $ 44,063.91 

GRAND TOTAL $ 5,507,153.20 

1



 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – August 9, 2021   Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

 

7. Considerations and Requests 
 

A. Pg 65 /Data Collection and Analytic Display Software – DC Karns 
 
 

B. Pg 81 /IT Consortium Interlocal Agreement – Chief Olson 
 
 

8. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg 106 /Human Resources – HRD Washo 
 
 

B. Pg 107 /Training – AC Juarez 
 
 

C. Pg 108 /Field Operations – AC Kent  
 

 

D. Pg 109 /DC Operations – DC Stueve/Presented by DC Karns 
 

 

E. Pg 110 /Fire Chief – Chief Olson 
 
 

9. Correspondence 
 

 

10. Commissioner Comments  
 
 

11. Adjournment 

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 4                                                                                                   July 26, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 26, 2021 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central 
Pierce Fire & Rescue to order by Zoom webinar at 5:02 p.m. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Coleman, and Willis, Chief Olson, Deputy Chief Stueve, 
FD Robacker, HRD Washo, ITD Kay, Assistant Chiefs Overby, Stueve, and McKenzie, 
CGRO Shaw, BC Jackson, and Executive Assistant Porter, recorder. Commissioner 
Eckroth joined the meeting at 5:04 p.m. Ex-Officio/Mayor Door joined the meeting at 
5:18 p.m.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chair Holm announced the need for an agenda revision to add an Executive Session for 
10 minutes under RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a public 
employee. Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to 
approve the revised agenda. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
BENEFIT CHARGE 
Chief Olson introduced Attorney Joe Quinn to report on his legal investigation into some 
aspects of the benefit charge. He noted that specific benefit charge election language is 
mandated in RCW 52.18. He confirmed that a 6 or 10 year continued benefit charge 
requires majority approval. A permanent benefit charge requires a super majority 
approval.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Minutes:  Regular Board Meeting of July 12, 2021    
C. Approval of: 

 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded to approve 
warrants totaling $5,126,516.22. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
No unfinished business. 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56312 to 56321 totaling $ 4,450,569.04 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56322 to 56322 totaling $ 516.18 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107531 to 107538 totaling $ 40,404.96 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107539 to 107539 totaling $ 1,180.61 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56323 to 56337 totaling $ 89,822.15 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56338 to 56370 totaling $ 544,023.28 

GRAND TOTAL $ 5,126,516.22 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 4                                                                                                   July 26, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
A. Mid-Year Budget Amendment 

 
FD Robacker explained that this is the annual mid-year budget amendment. An error 
was found in the Health and Safety section. Hearing tests should have shown as 
$13,862 rather than $138,652. It will be corrected in the documents for Second 
Reading. Budget items were reviewed by FD Robacker and division/project leaders. 
Chair Holm thanked everyone for their explanations.  
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  

A.  Fire Chief Selection 
 
HRD Washo reported that the application period closes July 31, 2021. The timeline has 
been set and the presentation of candidates to the review committee is scheduled for 
week of August 9th.  

 
B. New CPFR Website Review  

 
CGRO Shaw provided an overview of the new website format for Commissioner review 
and comment. Some highlights are the availability of viewing in other languages, social 
media links, and the option to be added to an email communication group. He thanked 
AC Overby and Support Specialist Amy Jackson for their assistance on the project.  

 
C. IT Director Salary Change  

 
HRD Washo explained that with the upcoming retirement of the IT Director, it was a 
good time to review agencies that we typically compare to determine if our pay range 
needed adjustment. After reviewing the data, Staff recommends increasing the IT 
Director starting pay by 6%. Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis 
seconded to approve the IT Director salary increase of 6%. MOTION CARRIED.  

 
D. West Pierce Fire and Rescue Interlocal Agreement  

 
AC Stueve presented the ILA that reflects medic unit reciprocity with our partners at 
West Pierce Fire and Rescue. Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner 
Eckroth seconded to approve the Interlocal Agreement for Medic Unit Services with 
West Pierce Fire and Rescue. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

A. Finance – FD Robacker reported that district finances are in-line for June, except 
overtime, which is being addressed in the mid-year budget amendment.  She 
provided an update on the current audit.  
 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 4                                                                                                   July 26, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

B. Information Technology – ITD Kay reported on the increased network availability 
over the last few years.  He confirmed his retirement as of August 31, 2021, and 
thanked the Board for their support.  
 

C. Logistics – AC Stueve expanded on the recent ladder truck inspection. The team 
doing the inspection did an outstanding job.   
 

D. Prevention & Education – AC Overby provided information on K-9 Hansel’s 
responses at Commissioner Eckroth’s request.  
 

E. Health & Safety – AC McKenzie reported that CPFR enrolled in Labor & 
Industries FIIRE pilot program, which will offer many benefits to the district.  
 

F. Fire Chief – Chief Olson highlighted topics in his report. He has spoken to many 
members of the Pierce County Council to discuss and educate them on the E911 
funding issue. He thanked the South Sound 911 leadership of Lillian Hunter and 
Mayor Door, which has brought us to this place. A draft letter to Pierce County 
Council was included in the packet thanking them for the fire code adoption. 
Chair Holm signed the document on behalf of the Board. The EMS study 
recommendations are expected in August. Due to unforeseen circumstances, the 
military is delayed in vacating the Puyallup Armory until November. They have 
agreed to allow access as needed, so this delay won’t affect the project timeline. 
Chair Holm thanked Chief Olson for meeting with Pierce County Council to better 
educate them to make the proper decision. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Agency Assist Appreciation from South Pierce Fire & Rescue 
 

B. Employee Appreciation (5) 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Ex-Officio/Mayor Door thanked Chief Olson both for stepping in for Chief Sharp recently 
and for his continued support. She very much liked the new website format and was 
glad to see the language issue addressed.   
 
Commissioner Coleman thanked everyone for their help and continued great job.   
 
Commissioner Eckroth thanked Ex-Officio/Mayor Door and Chief Olson for stepping up 
on the E911 issue.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
At 6:33 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded 
to move into Executive Session for 20 minutes under RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review 
the performance of a public employee until 6:43 p.m. 
 
At 6:43 p.m., Chair Holm extended the meeting for five minutes. 

5



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 4 of 4                                                                                                   July 26, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

 
At 6:48 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded 
to return to Regular Session. MOTION CARRIED. No action was taken during 
Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner 
Coleman seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:49 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 

      
DIANNE PORTER 
RECORDER  

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date:  August 9, 2021 

Item Title:  Mid‐Year Budget Amendment 

Attachments:  Resolution 21‐03, Exhibit A 

Submitted by:  Tanya Robacker 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

First reading
 

Second reading
 

Motion to approve
 

For information only
 

Other:
  Click here to enter text. 

MOTION: To approve Resolution 21‐03 amending and appropriating the 2021 Budget in the amount of 

$3,075,604. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   This resolution reflects appropriation for Board approved purchases throughout 

the 2021 year, revenues not identified or quantified during the 2021 Budget development, and Division 

head adjustments created during the year. 

 

The funds will be amended as follows: 

Fund  Description  2021 
Current 
Budget 

2021 
Amendment 
Res 21‐03 

2021 
Amended 
Budget 

001  General Fund   $     52,922,785  $       1,844,152  $    54,766,937 

011  Reserve Fund   0    0  0 

015  Equipt Replacement    2,154,537   181,000  2,335,537 

050  Facilities   300,000   0  300,000 

101  EMS Fund   15,571,641   1,050,452  16,622,093 

102  GEMT Fund  7,127,623  0  7,127,623 

201  Debt Fund   2,500,000   0  2,500,000 

301  Capital Projects   9,080,000   0  9,080,000 

630  HRA/Flex Trust   50,000   0  50,000 

  TOTAL  $      89,706,586  $       3,075,604  $    92,782,190 

 

55



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY BY DIVISION: 

 

 

Fund Division Division	Description Amount Budget	Notes

001 100 Commissioners (108,000)$     

Decrease, Contingency approved for website, 

facilities, GEMT & damaged SCBA

001 200 Administration 112,753         

Increase, Nash Training $47.6k, OPEIU retro, 

Station 72 legal, zoom

001 201 Finance 70,781           

Increase, Purchase Grant Mgr (deferred), GEMT, 

OP retro

001 203 Human Resources 73,402            Increase, Legal, Chief Recruitment, OP retro

001 204 Logistics 65,000           

Increase, Asset Control RFID, facilities rvw, move 

to CS Janitor

001 205 Central Stores 2,800               Increase, Janitorial (moved from logistics)

001 210 IT 3,557               Increase, Rubrik Polaris, small tools, contracts

001 215 IT ‐ Outside Districts 359,595         

Increase, Outside District approved 5/10 

(covered by revenue)

001 230 Training (66,204)           Decrease, Move registration to admin, OP retro

001 235 Academy 54,880            Increase, Hire 14 (up from 10)

001 250 Health & Safety 171,415         

Increase, Ballistic helmets 105k, EMS goggles 

35k, Hearing tests 13.8k, SCBA, various equipt

001 300 Suppression 968,746         

Increase, OT $1.94M, move 12 medics to EMS 

fund (983k), OP retro, food for incidents

001 320 Haz Mat 14,048            Increase, PCHIT review, medicals

001 330 Tech Rescue 21,302            Increase, Patient harnesses, team PPE

001 400 Prevention & Education 73,333           

Increase, website, Public Educator (deferred), 

Op retro

001 601 Station 61 3,000               Increase, Firefighter workstations (deferred)

001 605 Station 65 (1,250)             Decrease, Move to IT for plotter computer

001 650 Shop 1,994               Increase, Op retro

001 ‐ ‐ 23,000            Increase, ERF Transfer for SCBA approved 2/22

1,844,152$   

$517k from Revenue, the Balance Appropriated 

from Beginning Fund Balance/SavingsGeneral Fund Total

56



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 

 

   

EQUIPMENT	REPLACEMENT	FUND	(ERF	015)

Fund Division Division	Description Amount Expenditure	Notes

015 204 Logistics 158,000$       

Increase, Reappropriation approved 1/25 for 

Fuel Delivery

015 250 Health & Safety 23,000            Increase, SCBA approved 2/22

181,000         

Appropriated from Beginning Fund 

Balance/Savings

EMS	FUND	(EMS	101)

Fund Division Division	Description Amount Expenditure	Notes

101 340 EMS 1,050,452$   

Increase, Move 12 medics from suppression, 

Nash training $287k, PAM trng, OP retro, EMS 

1,050,452      No budget impact

3,075,604$   

ERF Fund Total

Grand Total Mid Year Amendment

EMS Fund Total

57



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

LINE ITEM DETAIL 

 

 

 

Fund Division Reason Account Account Name Exp Inc/(Dec)

001 100 CPFR Website Upgrades 54981 Commissioner Contingency (30,000.00) Decrease

Facilities Review Contract Appv'd 6/14 54981 Commissioner Contingency (35,000.00) Decrease

Moss Adams Consulting for GEMT 54981 Commissioner Contingency (20,000.00) Decrease

Move to Dues 54341 Airfare (7,300.00) Decrease

Move to Dues 54901 Dues/Membership Fees 7,300.00 Increase

Replace damaged SCBAs 54981 Commissioner Contingency (23,000.00) Decrease

100 Total (108,000.00) Decrease

200 Move to Operating Supplies 53136 Program Supplies (500.00) Decrease

Move to Operating Supplies 53141 Operating Supplies 500.00 Increase

Nash Training ‐Strategic Planning 54911 Contractual Services 47,570.00 Increase

OPEIU Retro Pay Adjust 51101 Regular Time 4,458.00 Increase

Station 72 Legal 54151 Legal Fees 60,000.00 Increase

Zoom Subscription 54902 Subscriptions 725.00 Increase

200 Total 112,753.00 Increase

201 Deferral Add back ‐ Purchasing Grant Mgr  51199 Salaries‐Budget Only 34,925.00 Increase

Moss Adams Consulting for GEMT 54191 Other Professional Services 20,000.00 Increase

OPEIU Retro Pay Adjust 51101 Regular Time 15,856.00 Increase

201 Total 70,781.00 Increase

203 Fire Chief Recruitment 54191 Other Professional Services 40,000.00 Increase

Move Food to books 53171 Food (150.00) Decrease

OPEIU Retro Pay Adjust 51101 Regular Time 3,402.00 Increase

Promotional Online Workbooks 53102 Books/Manuals 150.00 Increase

Unplanned Lawsuits and Investigations 54151 Legal Fees 30,000.00 Increase

203 Total 73,402.00 Increase

204 Asset Control / RFID Project Increase 56411 Equipment ‐ Computer/Software 40,000.00 Increase

Facilities Review Contract Appv'd 6/14 54911 Contractual Services 35,000.00 Increase

Move to Capital Key 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous (58,720.00) Decrease

Move to Capital Key 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 58,720.00 Increase

Move to CS ‐ Janitorial 53201 Fuel (2,800.00) Decrease

Reduce for MY Amend 53201 Fuel (7,200.00) Decrease

204 Total 65,000.00 Increase

205 Janitorial  54191 Other Professional Services 2,800.00 Increase

205 Total 2,800.00 Increase

210 Add penalties 54914 Penalties and Late Fees 473.00 Increase

Move savings from unfilled position 51101 Regular Time (10,210.00) Decrease

Move station 65 to IT 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 1,250.00 Increase

Move to Network Contract 51101 Regular Time (5,000.00) Decrease

Network Contract Ivoxy 54911 Contractual Services 5,000.00 Increase

OT for IT ‐ New Contract 51201 Div Staff Misc OT 9,737.00 Increase

Rubrik Polaris CPFR 54813 Maintenance Agreements 2,307.00 Increase

210 Total 3,557.00 Increase

Outside District true up  53401 Resale Items incl/ Other Dist (19,598.00) Decrease

Outside District true up  54202 Communication Connection 288,290.00 Increase

Outside District true up  54813 Maintenance Agreements 89,057.00 Increase

Rubrik Polaris Outside District 54813 Maintenance Agreements 1,846.00 Increase

215 Total 359,595.00 Increase

230 Increase Target Solutions for eval platform 54902 Subscriptions 5,000.00 Increase

Move Registration to Subscriptions 54921 Registration (5,000.00) Decrease

Move to Nash Consulting 54921 Registration (70,000.00) Decrease

OPEIU Retro Pay Adjust 51101 Regular Time 3,796.00 Increase

230 Total (66,204.00) Decrease

58



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

Fund Division Reason Account Account Name Exp Inc/(Dec)

235 Increase 10 to 14 Academy 52010 Personal Protective Equipment 25,000.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 52011 Uniforms 4,800.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 52014 Quartermaster 560.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 53101 Office Supplies 700.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 53102 Books/Manuals 2,400.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 53132 Employee Recognition Supplies 400.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 53141 Operating Supplies 2,000.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 53147 Breathing Apparatus Supplies 3,200.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 2,000.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 54171 Medical Exams 7,280.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 54191 Other Professional Services 5,180.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 54311 Lodging 960.00 Increase

Increase 10 to 14 Academy 54922 Certifications 400.00 Increase

235 Total 54,880.00 Increase

250 Ballistic helmets ‐ Active Shooter 52010 Personal Protective Equipment 105,526.00 Increase

EMS Goggles 52010 Personal Protective Equipment 34,650.00 Increase

Hearing Tests 54191 Other Professional Services 13,862.00 Increase

Move to Project Pay 51199 Salaries‐Budget Only (5,100.00) Decrease

Move to SCBA 53501 Small Tools/Equipment (51,610.00) Decrease

Peer support Lead Project Pay 51164 FF Project Pay 5,100.00 Increase

plate carriers 52010 Personal Protective Equipment 2,277.00 Increase

SCBA 53147 Breathing Apparatus Supplies 51,610.00 Increase

Wildland packs, 65 Bunker Washer, Fire Shelters 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 15,100.00 Increase

250 Total 171,415.00 Increase

300 Contract Increase 54911 Contractual Services 6,200.00 Increase

Food for emergency incidents 53171 Food 2,000.00 Increase

Increase OT Supp 51201 Div Staff Misc OT 1,944,250.00 Increase

Move 12 PM's to EMS  51101 Regular Time (700,000.00) Decrease

Move 12 PM's to EMS  52003 Medical/Dental (283,000.00) Decrease

OPEIU Retro Pay Adjust 51101 Regular Time 9,296.00 Increase

PCHIT contract to review program 54191 Other Professional Services (10,000.00) Decrease

300 Total 968,746.00 Increase

320 PCHIT contract to review program 54911 Contractual Services 5,000.00 Increase

PCHIT Costs 53141 Operating Supplies 1,048.00 Increase

Team Medicals 54171 Medical Exams 8,000.00 Increase

320 Total 14,048.00 Increase

330 Patient Harnesses 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 2,802.00 Increase

PCHIT contract to review program 54911 Contractual Services 5,000.00 Increase

TR Team PPE 52010 Personal Protective Equipment 13,500.00 Increase

330 Total 21,302.00 Increase

400 CPFR Website Upgrades 54191 Other Professional Services 30,000.00 Increase

Deferral Add back ‐ Public Educator 51199 Salaries‐Budget Only 40,435.00 Increase

OPEIU Retro Pay Adjust 51101 Regular Time 2,898.00 Increase

400 Total 73,333.00 Increase

601 Deferral Add back ‐ 61 FF Workstations 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 3,000.00 Increase

601 Total 3,000.00 Increase

605 Move to IT ‐ computer for plotter 53501 Small Tools/Equipment (1,250.00) Decrease

605 Total (1,250.00) Decrease

650 OPEIU Retro Pay Adjust 51101 Regular Time 1,994.00 Increase

650 Total 1,994.00 Increase

Replace damaged SCBAs 59715 Transfer Out to ERF 23,000.00 Increase

001 Total 23,000.00 Decrease

001 Total 1,844,152.00 Increase

59



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fund Division Reason Account Account Name Exp Inc/(Dec)

015.204 Reappropriate Fuel Delivery System 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 158,000.00 Increase

015.204 Total 158,000.00 Increase

015.250 Replace damaged SCBAs 56432 Capital ‐ Breathing Apparatus 23,000.00 Increase

015.250 Total 23,000.00 Increase

015 Total 181,000.00 Increase

EMS Coins 53132 Employee Recognition Supplies 400.00 Increase

EMS Connect Subscripton 54902 Subscriptions 19,600.00 Increase

Food 53171 Food 400.00 Increase

Move 12 PM's to EMS  51101 Regular Time 417,000.00 Increase

Move 12 PM's to EMS  52003 Medical/Dental 283,000.00 Increase

MSO FF Proj  51164 FF Project Pay 2,500.00 Increase

Nash Training ‐Strategic Planning 54911 Contractual Services 287,430.00 Increase

OPEIU Retro Pay Adjust 51101 Regular Time 2,872.00 Increase

PAM Instructor 54143 Instructors 2,250.00 Increase

Supplies increase 53141 Operating Supplies 35,000.00 Increase

340 Total 1,050,452.00 Increase

101 Total 1,050,452.00 Increase

Grand Total 3,075,604.00 Increase

60



Resolution 21-03 Mid-Year Budget Amendment  1 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS OF CENTRAL PIERCE 
FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE 2021 BUDGET 
AS ADOPTED IN RESOLUTION NO. 20-13 BY INCREASING APPROPRIATIONS PER 
THE MID-YEAR END BUDGET AMENDMENT.  

 
 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 20-13 adopted the 2021 budget for Central Pierce Fire 
& Rescue, 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to modify the District’s budget to appropriate funds for 
contract obligations, transfers, and other budget adjustments that were not identifiable in 
2020; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
authorizes the acceptance, deposit, and appropriation of miscellaneous donations, 
contributions, and/or fees; and 

 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners for 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue as follows: 
 
Section 1 
 
The budget for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, for the fiscal year ending December 31, 
2021, as adopted by Resolution No. 20-13, is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 2 
 
The total revenue and expenditures of the District are hereby appropriated as follows: 
 

Fund Description 2021 
Current 
Budget 

2021 
Amendment 
Res 21-03 

2021 
Amended 
Budget 

001 General Fund  $   52,922,785  $       1,844,152 $    54,766,937 
011 Reserve Fund  0  0 0 
015 Equipt Replacement   2,154,537  181,000 2,335,537 
050 Facilities  300,000  0 300,000 
101 EMS Fund  15,571,641  1,050,452 16,622,093 
102 GEMT Fund 7,127,623 0 7,127,623 
201 Debt Fund  2,500,000  0 2,500,000 
301 Capital Projects  9,080,000  0 9,080,000 
630 HRA/Flex Trust  50,000  0 50,000 
 TOTAL $     89,706,586 $       3,075,604 $    92,782,190 

 
  

61



Resolution 21-03 Mid-Year Budget Amendment  2 

ADOPTED by the Board of Fire Commissioners of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, Pierce 
County, Washington, at a regular meeting held this  9th  day of August, 2021, of which all 
commissioners were notified and ____ were present and voting. 
  
 
 
 
             
Matt Holm, Chairman    Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner 
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner    Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
        
Bill Eckroth, Commissioner  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 
 

62



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue Exhibit	A
2021	Budget	Amendment	Details Resolution	21‐03

GENERAL	FUND	(001)

Fund Division Division	Description Amount Budget	Notes

001 100 Commissioners (108,000)$      

Decrease, Contingency approved for website, 

facilities, GEMT & damaged SCBA

001 200 Administration 112,753         

Increase, Nash Training $47.6k, OPEIU retro, Station 

72 legal, zoom

001 201 Finance 70,781            

Increase, Purchase Grant Mgr (deferred), GEMT, OP 

retro

001 203 Human Resources 73,402             Increase, Legal, Chief Recruitment, OP retro

001 204 Logistics 65,000            

Increase, Asset Control RFID, facilities rvw, move to 

CS Janitor

001 205 Central Stores 2,800               Increase, Janitorial (moved from logistics)

001 210 IT 3,557               Increase, Rubrik Polaris, small tools, contracts

001 215 IT ‐ Outside Districts 359,595         

Increase, Outside District approved 5/10 (covered by 

revenue)

001 230 Training (66,204)           Decrease, Move registration to admin, OP retro

001 235 Academy 54,880             Increase, Hire 14 (up from 10)

001 250 Health & Safety 171,415         

Increase, Ballistic helmets 105k, EMS goggles 35k, 

Hearing tests 13.8k, SCBA, various equipt

001 300 Suppression 968,746         

Increase, OT $1.94M, move 12 medics to EMS fund 

(983k), OP retro, food for incidents

001 320 Haz Mat 14,048             Increase, PCHIT review, medicals

001 330 Tech Rescue 21,302             Increase, Patient harnesses, team PPE

001 400 Prevention & Education 73,333            

Increase, website, Public Educator (deferred), Op 

retro

001 601 Station 61 3,000               Increase, Firefighter workstations (deferred)

001 605 Station 65 (1,250)              Decrease, Move to IT for plotter computer

001 650 Shop 1,994               Increase, Op retro

001 ‐ ‐ 23,000             Increase, ERF Transfer for SCBA approved 2/22

1,844,152$    

$517k from Revenue, the Balance Appropriated 

from Beginning Fund Balance/SavingsGeneral Fund Total

63



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue Exhibit	A
2021	Budget	Amendment	Details Resolution	21‐03

EQUIPMENT	REPLACEMENT	FUND	(ERF	015)

Fund Division Division	Description Amount Expenditure	Notes

015 204 Logistics 158,000$       

Increase, Reappropriation approved 1/25 for Fuel 

Delivery

015 250 Health & Safety 23,000             Increase, SCBA approved 2/22

181,000          Appropriated from Beginning Fund Balance/Savings

EMS	FUND	(EMS	101)

Fund Division Division	Description Amount Expenditure	Notes

101 340 EMS 1,050,452$    

Increase, Move 12 medics from suppression, Nash 

training $287k, PAM trng, OP retro, EMS Connect 

1,050,452       No budget impact

3,075,604$    

ERF Fund Total

Grand Total Mid Year Amendment

EMS Fund Total

64



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:    August 9, 2021   

Item Title:     Data Collection and Analytic Display Software Consortium (Intterra) 

Attachments:     DCAD Consortium ILA 

Submitted by:    E. Stueve / Presented by R. Karns 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Motion: To Authorize Fire Chief Olson to sign on behalf of the Board of Commissioners 

an interlocal agreement providing for a five-year term for software as a service (SAAS). 

   

This SAAS was budgeted and planned for implementation for 2021. 

1. This SAAS provides for replacement of the, now failed, Active Units application 

resulting in real-time, emergency-unit status (units on a call, units available, units 

physical location, etc.). 

2. The ILA provides the vehicle for regional collaboration and expansion to further 

agencies to further distribute costs. 

a. Committed agencies: Graham Fire & Rescue, East Pierce Fire & Rescue, 

West Pierce Fire & Rescue, Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One, Key Peninsula 

Fire Department & Orting Valley Fire & Rescue. 

3. The ILA provides a mechanism for substantive cost sharing such that the District 

will be under budget for 2021 to achieve the planned operational goals (real-time, 

resource awareness) but also receive automated analytic reporting (dashboards 

in lieu of a manually generated paper report). 

 

65



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:       TOTAL 2021 $23,444 

 

Period Estimated Total Based Upon Current Participating Agencies 

2021-2022 $23,444 

2022-2023 $19,971 

2023-2024 $19,971 

2024-2025 $20,550 

2025-2026 $20,550 

 

66



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 1 

Data Collection and Analytic Display Software Consortium 

(Interlocal Agreement) 

This agreement is made and entered into by and between the undersigned municipal corporations, 

collectively referred to as “Agency” or “Agencies.” 

RECITALS 

1. This agreement is entered into in conformity with chapter 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation 

Act. 

2. The Agencies currently each maintain and operate their own fire services agencies to provide 

emergency responder services, including fire protection, fire suppression, emergency medical 

services, non-emergent medical care and other associated services in their respective areas. 

3. It is recognized that the Agencies have staffs that are performing similar tasks on a daily basis and 

that have varied talents, skills, and expertise; and by allowing the staffs to coordinate and 

collaborate, the skills and abilities of the individuals could be used in a manner that increases the 

efficiency of each Agency’s information technology needs. 

4. The Agencies desire to coordinate and centralize the acquisition, implementation and use of Data 

Collection and Analytic Display Software needs of the Agencies to reduce duplication of effort 

and expenses where feasible, to increase efficiencies, create a standardized platform between 

agencies and to gain the benefit of economies of scale for all participating Agencies. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and benefits contained herein, it is agreed 

between the Agencies as follows: 

1. Purpose and Scope of Agreement.  The purpose and scope of this Agreement is to formally 

establish an administrative entity under the provisions of RCW 39.34.030 to be known as the Data 

Collection and Analytics Display Consortium “DCAD Consortium” to implement a cooperative cost 

sharing and administrative approach to serve the data collection and analytic display needs of each 

Agency according to its needs and the general service priorities as established and approved by the 

Administrative Board. Each Agency shall retain full authority for and jurisdiction over its own fire 

prevention and protection services, emergency medical services and non-emergency services, 

boundaries, elections, and budgets and all other matters not specifically addressed in this 

Agreement. 

2. DEFINITIONS. 

2.1. “Fiscal Agent” means the Agency appointed by the Administrative Board to be the custodian 

of funds with responsibility to manage the finances of the DCAD Consortium. 

2.2. “Lead Agent” means the Agency appointed by the Administrative Board to manage the 

procurement, licensing and implementation of the DCAD Software. 

67



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 2 

2.3. "DCAD Software" means the scope services set forth in Exhibit A which may be amended 

from time to time by the Administrative Board.  

3. Governing Structure of DCAD Consortium 

3.1. Administrative Board.  

(a) The Administrative Board shall be composed of the Fire Chief or Fire Chief’s designee 

of each Agency to this Agreement.  The Administrative Board shall be responsible for: 

(i) Overseeing administration of the fiscal arrangements as set forth in this 

Agreement;  

(ii) Establishing an annual budget for the DCAD Software. 

(iii) Communicating with the governing bodies of the Agencies to this Agreement. 

(iv) Oversee and coordinate the licensing, purchase and implementation of the DCAD 

Software on a uniform basis amongst the Agencies. 

(b) The Administrative Board shall meet a minimum of once a year. Members of the 

Administrative Board shall elect by majority vote, after nominations at the first board 

meeting, a Chief to serve as presiding officer of the Administrative Board.  The Chair 

shall serve a two-year term.  The Chair shall schedule the meetings of the Administrative 

Board, to serve as presiding officer at board meetings, to gather information and to 

prepare the agenda for board meetings. In the event a Chair is unable or unwilling to 

complete his or her term, nominations shall be accepted by the Administrative Board 

for a replacement Chair, who shall be elected by majority vote of the board and who 

shall complete the term of the resigning Chair. Each Member shall have an equal vote 

on matters that come before the Administrative Board. Any decisions of the 

Administrative Board that involve the expenditure or obligation of an Agency’s funds 

in excess of the Administrative Board approved annual budget, shall constitute a 

recommendation to the governing bodies of the Agencies and shall not be effective until 

the governing bodies of each Agency have approved such recommendation. 

Administrative Board meetings may be held remotely using telephone or video meeting 

technology, provided, except in the event of an emergency, and unless waived by all 

Board Members all Board Members are provided at least 7 business days’ notice of such 

meeting and that all have the ability to hear and be heard using the adopted technology. 

3.2. Joint Decision Making 

(a) This Agreement does not alter the current command structure or organizational 

responsibilities of any Agency.  However, this Agreement will allow for joint decision-

making by the Administrative Board relating to each Agency’s DCAD Software needs. 

(b) Joint decision-making shall be exercised through recommendations or requests brought 

to the Administrative Board by the Fiscal Agent and shall apply only to those areas 

specifically identified by this Agreement. The Administrative Board shall approve joint 

recommendations using the following procedure.  Joint decisions shall only be made at 

68



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 3 

a meeting of the Administrative Board attended by a quorum of Agency representatives. 

A majority of the currently appointed Agency representatives shall constitute a quorum. 

Approval of joint recommendations shall be made by a majority vote. A Member unable 

to attend a meeting may vote by proxy by either sending a designated representative or 

by notifying the Administrative Board of the Member’s vote via email prior to the 

meeting or by providing a written proxy to another Member attending the meeting. 

4. Fiscal Arrangements 

4.1. Budget Process.  On or about July 15 of each year, the Fiscal Agent shall provide the 

Administrative Board, a proposed estimated annual budget for DCAD Consortium operations 

in the following year. The Administrative Board shall approve a final annual budget no later 

than September 30 of each year. The proposed estimated annual budget shall include the 

proposed Fiscal Agent and Lead Agent Administrative Costs. 

4.2. Cost Allocation. DCAD Consortium costs approved by the Administrative Board shall be 

allocated among the Agencies as follows: 

(a) Cost Distribution Per CAD Incident Formulary. The cost allocation between 

Agencies for DCAD Software Costs shall be based on a formulary of distribution of 

CAD created incidents as outlined in Exhibit B.  

(b) Additional Agencies (Section 13.). Agencies joining midterm shall enroll by payment 

of Administrative Costs as outlined in Exhibit C. 

4.3. Cost Structure.  DCAD Consortium Costs shall include the following. 

(a) DCAD Software Costs. Such costs shall include the initial and ongoing DCAD 

Software licensing costs. 

(b) Fiscal Agent Administrative Costs.  The Fiscal Agent shall be paid based on Exhibit 

C as approved by the Administrative Board to offset soft costs associated with serving 

as the Fiscal Agent including, administrative support costs, legal costs, human resources 

costs, consumable supplies, etc. 

(c) Lead Agent Administrative Costs.  The Lead Agent shall be paid based on Exhibit C 

as approved by the Administrative Board to offset soft costs associated with serving as 

the Lead Agent including, administrative support costs, legal costs, human resources 

costs, consumable supplies, etc. 

4.4. Unbudgeted Costs. In the event the Administrative Board determines during the course of 

the year that additional expenditures or contributions from one or more participating Agencies 

are necessary, the Administrative Board shall make a recommendation/request to the 

appropriate Agency. 

4.5. Cost/Service Reductions.  The Administrative Board shall have the authority to reduce an 

Agency’s Costs if an Agency requires less than the full services covered by the Administrative 

Costs. 

69



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 4 

4.6. Fiscal Agent.  The Fiscal Agent shall be an Agency under this Agreement as designated by 

the Administrative Board. The initial Fiscal Agent shall be Central Pierce Fire & Rescue. The 

Fiscal Agent shall be responsible for administering the financial operations of the DCAD 

Consortium including but not limited to, bill paying, receipt and, purchasing decisions, etc. 

4.7. Lead Agent.  The Lead Agent shall be an Agency under this Agreement as designated by the 

Administrative Board.  The Lead Agent may also serve as the Fiscal Agent. The initial Lead 

Agent shall be Central Pierce Fire & Rescue. The Lead Agent shall be responsible for 

providing necessary staff support to administer the procurement, licensing, implementation 

and oversight of the DCAD Software on behalf of the Agencies. 

4.8. Payment of Costs. For all costs owed by an Agency under this Agreement, the Fiscal Agent 

shall invoice each Agency with appropriate supporting documentation.  Invoices for Agency 

Direct Costs shall be delivered at the time such costs are incurred.  Invoices for Administrative 

Costs shall be invoiced on an annual basis on or before March 31 of each year.  Invoices shall 

be due within thirty days of receipt. 

5. DCAD Software Policies, Standards and Platforms. The Administrative Board on 

recommendation of the Lead Agent shall work to establish DCAD Consortium policies, standards 

and platforms. Each Agency shall work to modify its own policies, standards and platforms in a 

manner that ensures consistency between Agency and the Consortium policies, standards and 

platforms. 

6. Resources: Where possible, assets purchased by the DCAD Consortium shall be licensed to each 

individual agency and owned by individual agencies. This Agreement also allows for the 

collaborative acquisition, use, and management of property and equipment, (“Resources”).  Prior to 

commingling any Resources under this Agreement, all equipment and property with a value of more 

than $1,000.00 used in the performance of this Agreement shall be appropriately marked and 

inventoried by the contributing Agency. Ownership of Resources shall remain with the Agency that 

purchases or provides the Resource.  Jointly owned resources, if any, may be purchased with the 

approval of the Administrative Board and jointly owned resources shall be listed on Exhibit D to 

this Agreement “Joint Resources.”  The ownership and distribution of jointly owned resources shall 

be governed by the following paragraphs: 

6.1. The ownership and Ownership Share of Joint Resources acquired after the execution of this 

agreement shall be documented on Exhibit D. Such Joint Resources shall be owned by the 

Agencies to this agreement in proportion to the actual financial contribution of each Agency 

in the year of acquisition of such Resources “Ownership Share.” 

6.2. If this agreement is terminated as to all Agencies the depreciated value of the Joint Resources 

acquired under the terms of this agreement shall be divided in accordance with the Ownership 

Shares.  

6.3. In the event an Agency withdraws from this Agreement, such Agency shall be entitled to 

receive the depreciated value of its Ownership Share in the Joint Resources as determined in 

the sole reasonable discretion of the Administrative Board. 

70



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 5 

7. Annual Evaluation Process. The Administrative Board shall establish an annual evaluation process 

for each participating Agency to rate the services and satisfaction of the services provided by the 

DCAD Consortium.  Findings of the annual evaluation process along with accomplishments from 

the previous year shall be provided to each member agency. 

8. Records and Files.  DCAD Consortium staff will maintain all records and files produced pursuant 

to this Agreement in the offices of the Fiscal Agent, except as to such original documents that are 

maintained by the Agencies. 

9. Insurance 

9.1. The Agencies shall each provide and maintain suitable commercial general liability and auto 

liability insurance policies to protect it from casualty losses by reason of the activities 

contemplated by this Agreement. The limits of liability for each coverage shall be at least 

$2,000,000 each occurrence. 

10. Indemnification 

10.1. Each Agency shall be responsible for the wrongful or negligent actions of its Employees while 

participating in this Agreement as their respective liability shall appear under the laws of the 

State of Washington and/or Federal Law and this Agreement is not intended to diminish or 

expand such liability.  

10.2. To that end, each Agency promises to indemnify, defend and hold harmless all the other 

Agencies from any loss, claim or liability arising from or out of the negligent or otherwise 

tortious actions or omissions of its Employees, officers and officials. Such liability shall be 

apportioned among the Agencies or other at fault persons or entities in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Washington.  Each agency shall be solely responsible for its own attorney 

fees and any litigation related costs. 

10.3. Nothing herein shall be interpreted to: 

(a) Waive any defense arising out of RCW Title 51, provided; however, each Agency 

agrees that its obligations under this provision extend to any claim, demand, and/or 

cause of action brought by or on behalf of any of its Employees or agents. The foregoing 

indemnity is specifically and expressly intended to constitute a waiver of each Agency's 

immunity under Washington’s Industrial Insurance Act, RCW Title 51, with respect to 

the other Agencies only, and only to the extent necessary to provide each Agency with 

a full and complete indemnity of claims made by the other Agency's Employees. The 

Agencies acknowledge that these provisions were specifically negotiated and agreed 

upon by them. 

(b) Limit the ability of a participant to exercise any right, defense, or remedy which an 

Agency may have with respect to third party Agencies or the officer(s) whose action or 

omission give rise to loss, claim or liability, including but not limited to an assertion 

that the employee was acting beyond the scope of his or her employment. 

71



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 6 

(c) Cover or require indemnification or payment of any judgment against any individual or 

Agency for intentionally wrongful conduct outside the scope of employment of any 

individual or for any judgment for punitive damages against any individual or 

Agency.  Payment of punitive damage awards, fines or sanctions shall be the sole 

responsibility of the individual against whom said judgment, fine or sanction is rendered 

and/or his or her employer, should that employer elect to make said payment 

voluntarily.  This agreement does not require indemnification of any punitive damage 

awards or for any order imposing fines or sanctions. 

11. Dispute Resolution.  

11.1. Prior to any other action, the Administrative Board shall meet and attempt to negotiate a 

resolution to any dispute arising under this agreement. 

11.2.  If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute through negotiation, any party may demand 

mediation through a process to be mutually agreed to in good faith between the parties within 

30 days. The parties shall share equally the costs of mediation and shall be responsible for 

their own costs in preparation and participation in the mediation, including expert witness fees 

and reasonable attorney’s fees. 

11.3.  If a mediation process cannot be agreed upon or if the mediation fails to resolve the dispute, 

then within 30 calendar days any party may submit the matter to binding arbitration according 

to the procedures of the Superior Court Rules for Mandatory Arbitration, including the Local 

Mandatory Arbitration Rules of the Pierce County Superior Court, Pierce County, 

Washington, as amended, unless the parties agree in writing to an alternative dispute 

resolution process. The arbitration shall be before a disinterested arbitrator with both parties 

sharing equally in the cost of the arbitrator.  The location of the arbitration shall be mutually 

agreed or established by the assigned Arbitrator, and the laws of Washington will govern its 

proceedings.  Each party shall be responsible for its own costs in preparing for and 

participating in the arbitration, including expert witness fees and reasonable attorney’s fees.  

11.4. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, this dispute resolution process shall be the sole, exclusive 

and final remedy to or for any party for any dispute regarding this Agreement, and its 

interpretation, application or breach, regardless of whether the dispute is based in contract, 

tort, any violation of federal law, state statute or local ordinance or for any breach of 

administrative rule or regulation and regardless of the amount or type of relief demanded. 

12. Term/Termination of Agreement 

12.1. This agreement shall be effective on August 1, 2021 and shall continue for a term of five 

years. The Administrative Board may, extend the term of this Agreement for an additional 

five years on or before August 1, 2026 without further approval of the legislative bodies of 

the Agencies.  Additional renewals shall require reauthorization by the legislative bodies of 

the Agencies. 

12.2. In the event any Agency shall desire to withdraw or renegotiate any of the provisions of this 

agreement, such Agency shall give written notice to the other agencies no later than July 1 of 

the year prior to the year of the termination.  A written notice to renegotiate shall specify the 

72



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 7 

provision to be negotiated, the requested change and the reasons therefore and shall not be 

considered a notice of termination. In the event an Agency withdraws under this paragraph 

the remaining Agencies shall continue the Agreement. 

12.3. If an Agency consolidates with another municipal or local government entity through merger, 

annexation, or through the creation of a Regional Fire Protection Authority, the consolidated 

entity shall become an Agency to this Agreement and a successor in interest to the Agency’s 

interest on the effective date of the consolidation without any action by the remaining 

Agencies, unless otherwise required. 

13. Additional Agencies. 

13.1. Additional Agencies may join the DCAD Consortium when approved by a majority vote of 

the Administrative Board and upon approval and execution of this Interlocal Agreement. 

13.2. If this agreement is terminated as to all Agencies, the Administrative Board shall cause assets 

to be distributed per Section 6 and liabilities to be distributed per Cost Distribution per CAD 

Incident Formulary (Exhibit B.)   

14. Miscellaneous 

14.1. Audit. The Fiscal Agent shall permit any Agency, from time to time as they deem necessary 

(including after the expiration or termination of this Agreement), to inspect and audit at all 

reasonable times at the Fiscal Agent’s offices, all of the pertinent books and records to verify 

the accuracy of records pertaining to the work contemplated by this Agreement. The Fiscal 

Agent shall permit the Agency to copy any of these books and records upon the Agency’s 

request, subject to payment of the Fiscal Agent’s reasonable costs incurred in making those 

copies. The Administrative Board shall appoint an audit committee, consisting of two (2) 

member agency representatives other than the fiscal agent, to review the books, records and 

accounting practices of the fiscal agent pertaining to the DCAD Consortium at least once 

annually.  

14.2. Notices. All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the 

addresses listed on the signature page of the Agreement, unless notified to the contrary.  Any 

written notice hereunder shall become effective upon personal service or three (3) business 

days after the date of mailing by registered or certified mail via the United States Postal 

Service, and shall be deemed sufficiently given if sent to the addressee at the address stated 

in this Agreement or such other address as may be hereafter specified in writing. 

14.3. Benefits. This Agreement is entered into for the benefit of the Agencies to this agreement 

only and shall confer no benefits, direct or implied, on any third persons. 

14.4. Severability. If any provision of this agreement or its application is held invalid, the 

remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected. 

14.5. Amendments. This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the Agencies regarding the 

subjects addressed herein. Amendments to this Agreement may be proposed by the 

Administrative Board or by any Agency to the Agreement.  To become binding, Amendments 

73



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 8 

must be made in writing and must be recommended for approval by the Administrative Board 

and approved by the unanimous consent of the Agencies to the Agreement. Provided, 

however, the Administrative Board may, by unanimous vote, approve amendments to the 

Exhibits without additional Agency consent.  In the event that changes in federal or state law 

or changes in the boundaries of any or all Agencies significantly affect the performance of 

any Agency, the Agencies agree to enter into good faith negotiations so that continuation of 

the operations of the DCAD Consortium are not impaired. 

15. Execution. 

15.1. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall 

constitute an original, and all of which will together constitute this one Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agencies by the signatures of their authorized representatives have 

executed this Agreement effective upon the date of signatures. 

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW 

  

74



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 9 

 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT NO. 22 

(EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE) 

 

18421 Veterans Memorial Drive East 

Bonney Lake,  WA 98391 

 

By:      

 

 

DATE:      

 

 

NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 

 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT NO. 21 

(GRAHAM FIRE & RESCUE) 
 

P.O. BOX 369 

Graham,  WA 98338 

 

By:      

 

 

DATE:      

 

 

NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 

 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

 

 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT NO. 16 

(KEY PENINSULA FIRE) 

 

 

8911 Key Peninsula HWY NW 

Lakebay,  WA 98349 

 

By:      

 

 

DATE:      

 

 

NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 

 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

 

 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT NO. 5  

(GIG HARBOR FIRE  

& MEDIC ONE) 
 

10222 Bujacich Road NW 

Gig Harbor,  WA 98332 

 

By:      

 

 

DATE:      

 

 

NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 

 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Page 10 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT NO. 18  

(ORTING VALLEY FIRE & RESCUE) 

 

401 Washington Ave SE 

Orting,  WA 98360 

 

By:      

 

 

DATE:      

 

 

NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 

 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

 

 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT NO. 3 

(WEST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE) 

 

3631 Drexler Drive West 

University Place,  WA 98466 

 

By:      

 

 

DATE:      

 

 

NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 

 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

 

 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

 

 

 

P.O. Box 940 

Spanaway,  WA 98387 

 

By:      

 

 

DATE:      

 

 

NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 

 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

76



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Exhibit A-1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES  

 

 

1. Operations Suite to result in CAD/AVL data aggregation and display: 

1.1 Real-time incident routing 

1.2 Real-time unit status updates 

1.3 Real-time view of available/assigned resources 

1.4 Instant access to Agency GIS data layers (hydrants, infrastructure, etc.) 

1.5 Regional data sharing enhancing mutual aid interoperability 

 

2. Reporting & Analytics Suite data aggregation and display (dashboards) demonstrating: 

2.1 Year to Date Summary 

2.2 Quarterly Performance Review 

2.3 Incident Details 

2.4 First Arriver Performance 

2.5 Unit Performance 

2.6 Weekly Unit Response Summary 

2.7 Station Metrics 

2.8 Two Geospatial Performance Tools: 

2.9 Unit Performance 

2.10 Incident Performance 

 

77



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Exhibit B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

COST DISTRIBUTION PER CAD INCIDENT FORMULARY 

 

1. General 

This procedure applies to all signing Agencies. The Administrative Board reserves the right to 

modify or update this procedure at any time. 

2. Purpose and Objective 

The purpose of this procedure is to describe the cost allocation model for DCAD service.  

3. Process and Procedure 

The following table outlines cost distribution per Agency: 

3.1 Annual Cost: 

 Start End Annual Cost 

Subscription Start/End 
(SaaS terms) 

   

Year 1 Aug 1 2021 July 30 2022 60,161.72 

Year 2 Aug 2 2022 July 30 2023 51,161.72 

Year 3 Aug 2 2023 July 30 2024 51,161.72 

Year 4 Aug 2 2024 July 30 2025 52,184.95 

Year 5 Aug 2 2025 July 30 2026 52,696.57 

Total      $  267,366.69 

3.2 Total Annual Estimate: 

(a.) DCAD total cost divided by Total CAD Incidents (rounded up to the 100th) establishes 

Cost Ratio.   

(b.) Total Agency CAD Incidents multiplied by Cost Ratio (rounded up to the nearest whole 

dollar) establishes annual estimate. 

 

2021-2022 Participants per 2020 CAD Incident Distribution (Formulary = 0.81) 
Agency Calls Annual Estimate 

Orting Valley Fire & Rescue 2,200 $1,782 
Key Peninsula Fire Department 2,480 $2,009 
Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One 6,083 $4,928 
Graham Fire & Rescue 7,335 $5,942 
East Pierce Fire & Rescue 11,163 $9,043 
West Pierce Fire & Rescue 16,130 $13,066 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 28,943 $23,444 
TOTAL 74,334 $60,162.72 

 
 

 

78



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Exhibit C-1 

 

EXHIBIT C  

FISCAL AND LEAD AGENT ADMINISTRATIVE COST 

 

1. Fiscal Cost of  Contract Administration 

1.1. Annual Flat Rate for Administration of Billing $10 per Agency. 

2. Lead Agent Administrative Cost 

2.1 Initial Flat Rate for Legal Costs $100 per Agency. 

(a.) Charged once to each participating Agency with ratification. 

(b.) Charged once to each Additional Agency (Section 13.) with midterm 

ratification. 

 

79



 

 DCAD Consortium Interlocal Agreement—Exhibit D-1 

 

EXHIBIT D  

JOINTLY OWNED RESOURCES AND OWNERSHIP SHARES 

1.  Not Applicable: No current resources. 

80



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  August 9, 2021 

Item Title:   IT Consortium Interlocal Agreement 

Attachments:    

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
  
Motion: To approve and authorize Chief Olson to sign the IT consortium ILA. 
 
 
Board of Fire Commissioners: 
 
Over the last year, the three Districts that receive IT services have been working with 
CPF&R to change the structure of IT services into a consortium that reflects everyone’s 
equal influence on policy items like services provided and cost allocation. CPF&R has 
seen the value of a larger IT organization because it is allowing specialization that we 
would never be able to achieve at the price point we will be paying. All of the members 
find value in the initiative to meet todays and the future IT needs together. 
 
Before you is the draft ILA agreed to by all of the District Chiefs to create the 
consortium. It creates a Board of Directors made up of the Fire Chief who will direct the 
IT consortium. It spells out the cost formula and includes a percentage amount for 
CPF&R to perform the HR and finance functions along with facility costs. Attached you 
will also find the breakdown for costs. Through this process we have also quantified the 
replacement liability for each agency for a 5-year period. 
 
Staff recommendation is to approve the IT consortium ILA. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

81



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 1 

Information Technology Consortium 
(Interlocal Agreement) 

This agreement is made and entered into by and between the undersigned municipal corporations, 
collectively referred to as “Agency” or “Agencies.” 

RECITALS 

1. This agreement is entered into in conformity with chapter 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation 
Act. 

2. The Agencies currently each maintain and operate their own fire services agencies to provide 
emergency responder services, including fire protection, fire suppression, emergency medical 
services, non-emergent medical care and other associated services in their respective areas. 

3. It is recognized that the Agencies have staffs that are performing similar tasks on a daily basis and 
that have varied talents, skills, and expertise; and by allowing the staffs to coordinate and 
collaborate, the skills and abilities of the individuals could be used in a manner that increases the 
efficiency of each Agency’s information technology needs. 

4. The Agencies desire to coordinate and centralize the Information Technology needs of the 
Agencies to reduce duplication of effort and expenses where feasible, to increase efficiencies, 
create standardized technology platforms between agencies and to gain the benefit of economies 
of scale for all participating Agencies. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and benefits contained herein, it is agreed 
between the Agencies as follows: 

1. Purpose and Scope of Agreement.  The purpose and scope of this Agreement is to formally 
establish an administrative entity under the provisions of RCW 39.34.030 to be known as the 
Information Technology Consortium “ITC” to implement a cooperative information technology 
division that serves each Agency according to its needs and the general service priorities as 
established and approved by the Administrative Board. Each Agency shall retain full authority for 
and jurisdiction over its own fire prevention and protection services, emergency medical services 
and non-emergency services, boundaries, elections, and budgets and all other matters not 
specifically addressed in this Agreement. 

2. DEFINITIONS. 

2.1. “Fiscal Agent” means the Agency appointed by the Administrative Board to be the custodian 
of funds with responsibility to manage the finances of the ITC. 

2.2. "Information Technology" means the scope services set forth in Exhibit A which may be 
amended from time to time by the Administrative Board..  

82



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 2 

3. Governing Structure of ITC 

3.1. Administrative Board.  

(a) The Administrative Board shall be composed of the Fire Chief or Fire Chief’s designee 
of each Agency to this Agreement.  The Administrative Board shall be responsible for: 

(i) Overseeing administration of the fiscal arrangements as set forth in this 
Agreement;  

(ii) Approving the work-plans established by the IT Director. 

(iii) Establishing an annual budget. 

(iv) Adopting IT Consortium policies, standards and platforms as recommended by 
the IT Director. 

(v) Communicating with the governing bodies of the Agencies to this Agreement. 

(vi) Appoint the IT Director. 

(vii) Subject to the consent of the Agency employing the Director, establish 
compensation, benefits job duties and  working conditions of the IT Director. 

(viii) Direct, guide and oversee the actions of the IT Director in working toward 
completing the Administrative Board approved work-plans. 

(ix) Provide IT Director with regular job performance evaluations based on IT 
Director’s job description and approved work plans. 

(x) Provide Agency employing IT Director with input and guidance on any 
disciplinary issues involving IT Director. 

(b) The Administrative Board shall meet a minimum of twice a year. Members of the 
Administrative Board shall elect by majority vote, after nominations at the first board 
meeting, a Chief to serve as presiding officer of the Administrative Board.  The Chair 
shall serve a two-year term.  The Chair shall work with the IT Director to schedule the 
meetings of the Administrative Board, to serve as presiding officer at board meetings, 
to gather information and to prepare the agenda for board meetings. In the event a Chair 
is unable or unwilling to complete his or her term, nominations shall be accepted by the 
Administrative Board for a replacement Chair, who shall be elected by majority vote of 
the board and who shall complete the term of the resigning Chair. Each Member shall 
have an equal vote on matters that come before the Administrative Board. Any decisions 
of the Administrative Board that involve the expenditure or obligation of an Agency’s 
funds in excess of the Administrative Board approved annual budget, shall constitute a 
recommendation to the governing bodies of the Agencies and shall not be effective until 
the governing bodies of each Agency have approved such recommendation. 
Administrative Board meetings may be held remotely using telephone or video meeting 
technology, provided, except in the event of an emergency, and unless waived by all 

83



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 3 

Board Members all Board Members are provided at least 7 business days’ notice of such 
meeting and that all have the ability to hear and be heard using the adopted technology. 

3.2. Joint Decision Making 

(a) This Agreement does not alter the current command structure or organizational 
responsibilities of any Agency.  However, this Agreement will allow for joint decision-
making by the Administrative Board based upon established policy and 
recommendations of the IT Director to modify command structures or organizational 
responsibilities relating to each Agency’s information technology needs. 

(b) Joint decision-making shall be exercised through recommendations or requests brought 
to the Administrative Board by the IT Director or any Board member. Approval of these 
recommendations or requests by the Administrative Board shall apply only to those 
areas specifically identified by this Agreement. The Administrative Board shall approve 
joint recommendations using the following procedure.  Joint decisions shall only be 
made at a meeting of the Administrative Board attended by a quorum of Agency 
representatives. A majority of the currently appointed Agency representatives shall 
constitute a quorum. Approval of joint recommendations shall be made by a majority 
vote. A Member unable to attend a meeting may vote by proxy by either sending a 
designated representative or by notifying the Administrative Board of the Member’s 
vote via email prior to the meeting or by providing a written proxy to another Member 
attending the meeting. 

(c) When the Administrative Board identifies an issue needing a decision that is not within 
the adopted work plans for the current year, the Administrative Board, through the 
Board Chair, shall notify the IT Director  of the issue and request a position report to be 
presented through electronic communication or at a special Administrative Board 
meeting to discuss and decide on the specific issue.  In keeping with the intent of this 
agreement to serve each agency according to established work plans and priorities, this 
joint decision process is critical to maintaining the ability to represent each Agency’s 
interest in maintaining a high level of information technology to serve each Agency.   

3.3. IT Director. 

(a) The IT Director shall be an employee of an Agency and shall be appointed by the 
Administrative Board for a term established by the Administrative Board. The IT 
Director shall be appointed based upon the competencies required in policies established 
by the Administrative Board.  The IT Director shall be responsible for: 

(i) Recommending annual information technology budgets, goals, and work-plan 
objectives to the Administrative Board; 

(ii) Develop, recommend and assist with implementing consistent standards and 
policies for Consortium information technology services, platforms, products and 
equipment, information technology performance reporting and capital planning to 
meet the general needs of the ITC members and individual Agency priorities. 

84



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 4 

(iii) Assuring that the standards and policies developed comply with applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, codes, rules, industry standards and regulations. 

(iv) Managing the ITC operations on a day to day basis to provide information 
technology services in a professional, courteous, effective and timely manner to 
all Agencies. 

(v) Recommend staffing requirements, job descriptions, and organizational structure 
of the ITC. 

(vi) Developing an annual Budget for the ITC. 

(vii) Develop, recommend and assist with implementing standard protocols for the 
procurement of software, services, materials, equipment and supplies to meet the 
information technology needs of the ITC and individual member Agencies. 

(viii) Manage and implement joint procurement process consistent with Washington 
and where applicable, federal procurement laws. 

(ix) Managing information technology service and help desk needs by establishing a 
service priority schedule that reduces conflicts with member Agencies. By nature 
of providing information technology services for multiple agencies, conflicts of 
interest may arise from time to time. Should conflicts of interest or conflicts of 
work product priorities arise, the IT Director shall seek guidance of the 
Administrative Board in a timely manner.  

(x) Providing IT Employees oversight and supervision including determining 
working locations for IT Employees. 

(xi) Performing such other tasks as directed by the Administrative Board. 

4. ITC Employees.  The Administrative Board shall identify the total number of employees necessary 
for the operation of the ITC based on the recommendations of the IT Director.  

4.1. All ITC Employees shall be employees of Central Pierce Fire and Rescue “Employing 
Agency.”  

4.2. Employing Agency shall be responsible for establishing and paying ITC Employee 
compensation and benefits.   

4.3. Employing Agency  shall be responsible for hiring, evaluating, firing, and disciplining ITC 
Employees.   

4.4. To the extent this Agreement would result in any personnel changes that affect the wages, 
benefits or working conditions of any represented ITC employees, the IT Director and 
Administrative Board shall assist and cooperate with the Employing Agency in addressing 
such impacts with the affected bargaining units prior to the implementation of the change. 

85



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 5 

5. Central ITC Office Base.  Central Pierce Fire and Rescue currently has office space in a  centralized 
location that the Agencies may use for office space for the ITC staffing. Other Agencies shall 
provide space as necessary for specific work at an Agency. 

6. Fiscal Arrangements 

6.1. Budget Process.  On or about August 15 of each year, the IT Director shall provide the 
Administrative Board, a proposed estimated annual budget for ITC operations in the following 
year. The Administrative Board shall approve  a final annual budget no later than September 
30 of each year. The proposed estimated annual budget shall include the proposed Fiscal 
Agent Administrative Cost. 

6.2. Cost Allocation. IT Consortium costs approved by the Administrative Board shall be 
allocated among the Agencies as follows: 

(a) Agency Direct Costs. Costs for Agency-specific equipment, material and licensing 
shall be allocated to each specific Agency “Agency Direct Costs”.  Agency Direct Costs 
shall be transparently and specifically identified separate from the Administrative Costs 
during each budget process. 

(b) Administrative Costs. General costs that cannot be allocated to specific agencies, 
including but not limited to the Administrative Costs listed below shall be allocated 
between Agencies based on Active Directory Accounts used by each Agency. The 
Active Directory Accounts for each Agency shall be established each January 31 
pursuant to the methodology established in Exhibit B and such established Active 
Directory Accounts shall be used to allocate costs in the subsequent year.  For example, 
the Active Directory Accounts established on January 31, 2022 shall be used to allocate 
costs for the 2023 budget year.  

(i) Facility Costs. Costs of ITC Facilities including but not limited to rent and 
utilities for the facilities shall be based on a square footage times fair market value 
based calculation.  

(ii) ITC Employee Cost. The cost of the IT Director and ITC Employees appointed 
pursuant to Sections 3.3 and 4.  

(iii) ITC Vehicle Costs.  The Costs of vehicles necessary to support the ITC’s 
activities.  Such vehicles may be provided by any Agency at an agreed 
reimbursement rate. 

(iv) ITC Direct Costs.  Costs for equipment, staffing and services that are not 
provided by or specific to any Agency and that are approved by the Administrative 
Board in the budgeting process. 

(v) Fiscal Agent Administrative Costs.  The Fiscal Agent shall be paid a percentage 
based on Exhibit C as approved by the Administrative Board to offset soft costs 
associated with serving as the Fiscal Agent including, administrative support 
costs, legal costs, human resources costs, consumable supplies, etc. 

86



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 6 

(c) Unbudgeted Costs. In the event the Administrative Board determines during the course 
of the year that additional expenditures or contributions from one or more participating 
Agencies are necessary, the Administrative Board shall make a 
recommendation/request to the appropriate Agency. 

(d) Cost/Service Reductions.  The Administrative Board shall have the authority to reduce 
an Agency’s Costs if an Agency requires less than the full services covered by the 
Administrative Costs. 

6.3. Fiscal Agent.  The Fiscal Agent shall be an Agency under this Agreement as designated by 
the Administrative Board.  The Fiscal Agent shall be responsible for administering the 
financial operations of the ITC including but not limited to reimbursing Agencies that employ 
ITC Employees, bill paying, receipt and investment of funds, purchasing decisions, etc. 

6.4. Payment of Costs. For all costs owed by an Agency under this Agreement, the Fiscal Agent 
shall invoice each Agency with appropriate supporting documentation.  Invoices for Agency 
Direct Costs shall be delivered at the time such costs are incurred.  Invoices for Administrative 
Costs shall be invoiced on an annual basis on or before March 31 of each year.  Invoices shall 
be due within thirty days of receipt. 

7. IT Policies, Standards and Platforms. The Administrative Board on recommendation of the IT 
Director shall work to establish Consortium IT policies, standards and platforms. Each Agency shall 
work to modify its own policies, standards and platforms in a manner that ensures consistency 
between Agency and the Consortium policies, standards and platforms. 

8. Information Technology Inventory: This Agreement allows for the collaborative acquisition, 
storage, distribution, use, and management of materials, equipment, software and supplies necessary 
for Agency operations (“Inventory”).  

9. Resources: Where possible, assets purchased by the ITC shall be licensed to each individual agency 
and owned by individual agencies. This Agreement also allows for the collaborative acquisition, 
use, and management of property and equipment, (“Resources”).  Prior to commingling any 
Resources under this Agreement, all equipment and property with a value of more than $1,000.00 
used in the performance of this Agreement shall be appropriately marked and inventoried by the 
contributing Agency. Ownership of Resources shall remain with the Agency that purchases or 
provides the Resource.  Jointly owned resources, if any, may be purchased with the unanimous 
approval of the Administrative Board and jointly owned resources shall be listed on Exhibit D to 
this Agreement “Joint Resources.”  The ownership and distribution of jointly owned resources shall 
be governed by the following paragraphs: 

9.1. The ownership and Ownership Share of Joint Resources acquired after the execution of this 
agreement shall be documented on Exhibit D. Such Joint Resources shall be owned by the 
Agencies to this agreement in proportion to the actual financial contribution of each Agency 
or if that is not feasible then ownership shall be based on the on pro rata basis based of 
Directory Accounts as described under Section 6.2(b) in the year of acquisition of such 
Resources “Ownership Share.” 

87



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 7 

9.2. If this agreement is terminated as to all Agencies the depreciated value of the Joint Resources 
acquired under the terms of this agreement shall be divided in accordance with the Ownership 
Shares.  

9.3. In the event an Agency withdraws from this Agreement, such Agency shall be entitled to 
receive the depreciated value of its Ownership Share in the Joint Resources as determined in 
the sole reasonable discretion of the Administrative Board. 

10. Annual Evaluation Process. The Administrative Board shall establish an annual evaluation process 
for each participating Agency to rate the services and satisfaction of the services provided by the 
ITC.  Findings of the annual evaluation process along with accomplishments from the previous year 
shall be provided to each member agency. 

11. Records and Files.  ITC staff will maintain all records and files produced pursuant to this 
Agreement in the offices of the Fiscal Agent, except as to such original documents that are 
maintained by the Agencies. 

12. Insurance 

12.1. The Agencies shall each provide and maintain suitable commercial general liability and auto 
liability insurance policies to protect it from casualty losses by reason of the activities 
contemplated by this Agreement. The limits of liability for each coverage shall be at least 
$2,000,000 each occurrence. 

13. Indemnification 

13.1. Each Agency shall be responsible for the wrongful or negligent actions of its Employees while 
participating in this Agreement as their respective liability shall appear under the laws of the 
State of Washington and/or Federal Law and this Agreement is not intended to diminish or 
expand such liability.  

13.2. To that end, each Agency promises to indemnify, defend and hold harmless all the other 
Agencies from any loss, claim or liability arising from or out of the negligent or otherwise 
tortious actions or omissions of its Employees, officers and officials. Such liability shall be 
apportioned among the Agencies or other at fault persons or entities in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Washington.  Each agency shall be solely responsible for its own attorney 
fees and any litigation related costs. 

13.3. Nothing herein shall be interpreted to: 

(a) Waive any defense arising out of RCW Title 51, provided; however, each Agency 
agrees that its obligations under this provision extend to any claim, demand, and/or 
cause of action brought by or on behalf of any of its Employees or agents. The foregoing 
indemnity is specifically and expressly intended to constitute a waiver of each Agency's 
immunity under Washington’s Industrial Insurance Act, RCW Title 51, with respect to 
the other Agencies only, and only to the extent necessary to provide each Agency with 
a full and complete indemnity of claims made by the other Agency's Employees. The 

88



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 8 

Agencies acknowledge that these provisions were specifically negotiated and agreed 
upon by them. 

(b) Limit the ability of a participant to exercise any right, defense, or remedy which an 
Agency may have with respect to third party Agencies or the officer(s) whose action or 
omission give rise to loss, claim or liability, including but not limited to an assertion 
that the employee was acting beyond the scope of his or her employment. 

(c) Cover or require indemnification or payment of any judgment against any individual or 
Agency for intentionally wrongful conduct outside the scope of employment of any 
individual or for any judgment for punitive damages against any individual or 
Agency.  Payment of punitive damage awards, fines or sanctions shall be the sole 
responsibility of the individual against whom said judgment, fine or sanction is rendered 
and/or his or her employer, should that employer elect to make said payment 
voluntarily.  This agreement does not require indemnification of any punitive damage 
awards or for any order imposing fines or sanctions. 

14. Dispute Resolution.  

14.1. Prior to any other action, the Administrative Board shall meet and attempt to negotiate a 
resolution to any dispute arising under this agreement. 

14.2.  If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute through negotiation, any party may demand 
mediation through a process to be mutually agreed to in good faith between the parties within 
30 days. The parties shall share equally the costs of mediation and shall be responsible for 
their own costs in preparation and participation in the mediation, including expert witness fees 
and reasonable attorney’s fees. 

14.3.  If a mediation process cannot be agreed upon or if the mediation fails to resolve the dispute, 
then within 30 calendar days any party may submit the matter to binding arbitration according 
to the procedures of the Superior Court Rules for Mandatory Arbitration, including the Local 
Mandatory Arbitration Rules of the Pierce County Superior Court, Pierce County, 
Washington, as amended, unless the parties agree in writing to an alternative dispute 
resolution process. The arbitration shall be before a disinterested arbitrator with both parties 
sharing equally in the cost of the arbitrator.  The location of the arbitration shall be mutually 
agreed or established by the assigned Arbitrator, and the laws of Washington will govern its 
proceedings.  Each party shall be responsible for its own costs in preparing for and 
participating in the arbitration, including expert witness fees and reasonable attorney’s fees.  

14.4. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, this dispute resolution process shall be the sole, exclusive 
and final remedy to or for any party for any dispute regarding this Agreement, and its 
interpretation, application or breach, regardless of whether the dispute is based in contract, 
tort, any violation of federal law, state statute or local ordinance or for any breach of 
administrative rule or regulation and regardless of the amount or type of relief demanded. 

89



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 9 

15. Term/Termination of Agreement 

15.1. This agreement shall be effective on ______________, 20__ and shall continue for a term of 
five years. The Administrative Board may, extend the term of this Agreement for an additional 
five years on or before __________, 20__ without further approval of the legislative bodies 
of the Agencies.  Additional renewals shall require reauthorization by the legislative bodies 
of the Agencies. 

15.2. In the event any Agency shall desire to withdraw or renegotiate any of the provisions of this 
agreement, such Agency shall give written notice to the other agencies no later than July 1 of 
the year prior to the year of the termination.  A written notice to renegotiate shall specify the 
provision to be negotiated, the requested change and the reasons therefore and shall not be 
considered a notice of termination. In the event an Agency withdraws under this paragraph 
the remaining Agencies shall continue the Agreement. 

15.3. If an Agency consolidates with another municipal or local government entity through merger, 
annexation, or through the creation of a Regional Fire Protection Authority, the consolidated 
entity shall become an Agency to this Agreement and a successor in interest to the Agency’s 
interest on the effective date of the consolidation without any action by the remaining 
Agencies, unless otherwise required. 

16. Additional Agencies. 

16.1. Additional Agencies may join the ITC when approved by a majority vote of the 
Administrative Board and upon approval and execution of this Interlocal Agreement. 

16.2. If this agreement is terminated as to all Agencies each Agency shall receive its Information 
Technology Inventory Credit in cash, equipment or supplies as determined by the sole 
reasonable discretion of the Administrative Board.  Any additional assets or liabilities shall 
be shared by the Agency’s based on the Active Directory Account allocation contained in 
Section 6.2.(b).  

17. Miscellaneous 

17.1. Audit. The Fiscal Agent shall permit any Agency, from time to time as they deem necessary 
(including after the expiration or termination of this Agreement), to inspect and audit at all 
reasonable times at the Fiscal Agent’s offices, all of the pertinent books and records to verify 
the accuracy of records pertaining to the work contemplated by this Agreement. The Fiscal 
Agent shall permit the Agency to copy any of these books and records upon the Agency’s 
request, subject to payment of the Fiscal Agent’s reasonable costs incurred in making those 
copies. The Administrative Board shall appoint an audit committee, consisting of two (2) 
member agency representatives other than the fiscal agent, to review the books, records and 
accounting practices of the fiscal agent pertaining to the ITC at least once annually.  

17.2. Notices. All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the 
addresses listed on the signature page of the Agreement, unless notified to the contrary.  Any 
written notice hereunder shall become effective upon personal service or three (3) business 
days after the date of mailing by registered or certified mail via the United States Postal 

90



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 10 

Service, and shall be deemed sufficiently given if sent to the addressee at the address stated 
in this Agreement or such other address as may be hereafter specified in writing. 

17.3. Benefits. This Agreement is entered into for the benefit of the Agencies to this agreement 
only and shall confer no benefits, direct or implied, on any third persons. 

17.4. Severability. If any provision of this agreement or its application is held invalid, the 
remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected. 

17.5. Amendments. This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the Agencies regarding the 
subjects addressed herein. Amendments to this Agreement may be proposed by the 
Administrative Board or by any Agency to the Agreement.  To become binding, Amendments 
must be made in writing and must be recommended for approval by the Administrative Board 
and approved by the unanimous consent of the Agencies to the Agreement. Provided, 
however, the Administrative Board may, by unanimous vote, approve amendments to the 
Exhibits without additional Agency consent.  In the event that changes in federal or state law 
or changes in the boundaries of any or all Agencies significantly affect the performance of 
any Agency, the Agencies agree to enter into good faith negotiations so that continuation of 
the operations of the ITC are not impaired. 

18. Execution. 

18.1. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute an original, and all of which will together constitute this one Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agencies by the signatures of their authorized representatives have 
executed this Agreement effective upon the date of signatures. 

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW 
  

91



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Page 11 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
 
 
By:      
 
 
DATE:      
 
 
NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 
 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 
 
 

GRAHAM FIRE & RESCUE 
 
 
By:      
 
 
DATE:      
 
 
NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 
 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 
 
 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT NO. 16 

(KEY PENINSULA FIRE) 
 
 
By:      
 
 
DATE:      
 
 
NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 
 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 
 
 

GIG HARBOR FIRE  
& MEDIC ONE 

 
 
 
By:      
 
 
DATE:      
 
 
NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 
 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________ 
 
 

 

92



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Exhibit A-1 

 
EXHIBIT A 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONSORTIUM SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 
 
 

93



TITLE:   Generate Active User Counts PROC. NO.: IT0014
EFFECTIVE DATE: 03-16-2021                                  REVISED: 01/14/21
ISSUED BY: IT                                                            

 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Exhibit B-1 

EXHIBIT B 
ACTIVE DIRECTORY ACCOUNT METHODOLOGY 

 

1. General 

This procedure applies to all CPFR, Gig Harbor, Graham, and Key Peninsula Staff.  The IT 
Consortium Director and or the Consortium Board reserves the right to modify or update this 
procedure at any time. 

2. Purpose and Objective 

The purpose of this procedure is to describe the process by which the IT department 
generates the current number of active user accounts for each member district of the IT 
Consortium.  

3. Process and Procedure 
The following steps outline the process to identify relevant accounts and the procedure obtain the 
quantity of those accounts per district. 

 

A. Determining Accounts to Include in Report 

In order to filter out shared accounts, service accounts, and other non-billable accounts an active 
user account must meet the following criteria: 

1) The account is a user type object (not a group, computer, printer, etc.). 
2)  The account marked as active (not disabled) in Active Directory. 
3)  The account has an associated email address in Microsoft Exchange. 

B. Process for Acquiring Account Report  

i. To generate the user count report 

An IT staff member must run the following commands in PowerShell: 
 

CPFR 
(Get-AdUser -filter {mail -like '*'} -searchbase "OU=Central Pierce Primary 
Directory,DC=CentralPierce,DC=org" -server "S-DCR2-02" |Where {$_.enabled -eq 
"True"}).count 
  
Gig Harbor 
(Get-AdUser -filter {mail -like '*'} -searchbase "OU=Gig Harbor Primary 
Directory,DC=GigHarborFire,DC=org" -server "S-DCGH-01"|Where {$_.enabled -eq 
"True"}).count 
  

94



TITLE:   Generate Active User Counts PROC. NO.: IT0014
EFFECTIVE DATE: 03-16-2021                                  REVISED: 01/14/21
ISSUED BY: IT                                                            

 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Exhibit B-2 

Key Peninsula 
(Get-AdUser -filter {mail -like '*'} -searchbase "OU=Key Peninsula Primary 
Directory,DC=KeyPeninsulaFire,DC=org" -server "S-DCKP-01"|Where {$_.enabled -eq 
"True"}).count 
  
Graham 
(Get-AdUser -filter {mail -like '*'} -searchbase "OU=Graham Fire Primary 
Directory,DC=GrahamFire,DC=local" -server "S-DCGF-01"|Where {$_.enabled -eq 
"True"}).count 

ii. To generate the user count report with all account names 

An IT staff member must run the following commands in PowerShell: 
 

 
CPFR 
(Get-AdUser -filter {mail -like '*'} -searchbase "OU=Central Pierce Primary 
Directory,DC=CentralPierce,DC=org" -server "S-DCR2-02" |Where {$_.enabled -eq 
"True"})| Select-Object name | export-csv -path c:\software\cpfrusercount.csv 
 
Gig Harbor 
(Get-AdUser -filter {mail -like '*'} -searchbase "OU=Gig Harbor Primary 
Directory,DC=GigHarborFire,DC=org" -server "S-DCGH-01"|Where {$_.enabled -eq 
"True"})| Select-Object name | export-csv -path c:\software\GHusercount.csv 
 
Key Peninsula 
(Get-AdUser -filter {mail -like '*'} -searchbase "OU=Key Peninsula Primary 
Directory,DC=KeyPeninsulaFire,DC=org" -server "S-DCKP-01"|Where {$_.enabled -eq 
"True"})| Select-Object name | export-csv -path c:\software\KPusercount.csv 
 
Graham 
(Get-AdUser -filter {mail -like '*'} -searchbase "OU=Graham Fire Primary 
Directory,DC=GrahamFire,DC=local" -server "S-DCGF-01"|Where {$_.enabled -eq 
"True"})| Select-Object name | export-csv -path c:\software\GFRusercount.csv 

 

 

95



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Exhibit C-1 

 
EXHIBIT C  

FISCAL AGENT ADMINISTRATIVE COST 

 

96



 

 ITC Interlocal Agreement—Exhibit D-1 

 
EXHIBIT D  

JOINTLY OWNED RESOURCES AND OWNERSHIP SHARES 

 

97



TOTAL 2021 CPFR 
Budgeted IT Costs:

$ 1,740,989

DIRECT Portion Paid 
Solely by CPFR:

$704,694

SHARED Portion 
Allocated to IT 
Consortium:
$1,036,295

ADMIN overhead 
Allocated to IT 

Consortium – 6.3%:
$65,287

FLEET costs 
Allocated to IT 
Consortium:

$6,021

FACILITY costs 
Allocated to IT 
Consortium:
$39,519

TOTAL COST TO IT CONSORTIUM – ACCOUNT BASIS OF ALLOCATION*:

$1,277,022

50.1% 
CPFR:

$639,259

17.8%
GIG HARBOR:

$227,558

9.5%
KEY PEN:

$121,266

22.6%
GRAHAM:

$288,939

TOTAL COST TO ALLOCATE TO IT CONSORTIUM:

$1,277,022

20
21

 –
 T

O
T

A
L

 C
o

st
 

E
st

im
at

e
+

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

C
o

st
s

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 -

 B
as

is
 

o
f 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

*

+ + +

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue
2021 – Proposed IT Consortium Cost Allocations

Revised 6/17/21

* Direct costs include district specific network connections, phone lines, and maintenance costs

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS* :

$1,228,001

CPFR:

$704,694
GIG HARBOR:

$271,197
KEY PEN:

$76,829
GRAHAM:

$175,281

Ops Analyst 
Allocated to IT 
Consortium
$129,900

+

Pg 198



CPFR:

$1,343,953
GIG HARBOR:

$498,755
KEY PEN:

$198,095
GRAHAM:

$464,220

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 F

W
D

 
S

U
B

T
O

T
A

L
 A

llo
ca

te
d
 +

D
ir

ec
t 

C
o

st
s

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 
R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

CPFR:

$386,400
GIG HARBOR:

$165,200
KEY PEN:

$80,500
GRAHAM:

$27,100

BALANCE FORWARD FROM PAGE 1 – ALLOCATED COST + DIRECT COST:

$2,505,023

COMPUTER/EQUIPMENT  REPLACEMENT COSTS:

$659,200

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
S

T
A

llo
ca

te
d

 &
 D

ir
ec

t

CPFR:

$1,730,353
GIG HARBOR:

$663,955
KEY PEN:

$278,595
GRAHAM:

$491,320

TOTAL 2021 COST (ALLOCATED + DIRECT + COMPUTER REPLACEMENT):
$3,164,223

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue – IT Consortium Estimates, 2021

Pg 299



Central Pierce Fire & Rescue – IT Consortium Forecast 2021-2024

2023F 2024F

COST:
Forecast 

Increase  CPFR   Graham 

 Gig 

Harbor   Key Pen 

TOTAL 

2023F  CPFR   Graham 

 Gig 

Harbor   Key Pen 

TOTAL 

2023F

Admin Overhead Allocation 6.3% 

(HR, Finance, CS) 2.90% 34,700        15,800     12,400     6,600       69,500        35,800        16,300     12,800     6,800       71,700       

Computer Replacement Costs (per 

Schedule) Schedule 458,400      232,224  145,056  13,088     848,768      508,407      52,089     245,599  154,803  960,898     

Direct Costs (Phone, Network, etc) 1.00% 719,000      178,900  276,800  78,400     1,253,100  726,200      180,700  279,600  79,200     1,265,700 

Facilities Costs (Spread by Count) 1.00% 20,200        9,200       7,300       3,900       40,600        20,500        9,300       7,400       4,000       41,200       

Fleet Costs (Spread by Count) 1.00% 3,200          1,500       1,200       700          6,600          3,300          1,600       1,300       800          7,000         

Operations Analyst (Spread by 

Count) 3.00% 69,100        31,300     24,700     13,200     138,300      71,200        32,300     25,500     13,600     142,600     

Shared Costs (Spread by Count) 1.00% 529,300      239,300  188,500  100,400  1,057,500  534,600      241,700  190,400  101,500  1,068,200 

TOTALS 1,833,900  708,224  655,956  216,288  3,414,368  1,900,007  533,989  762,599  360,703  3,557,298 

2021 Budget 2022F

COST:
Forecast 

Increase  CPFR   Graham   Gig Harbor   Key Pen 

TOTAL

2021  CPFR   Graham 

 Gig 

Harbor   Key Pen  TOTAL 2022F

Admin Overhead Allocation 6.3% 

(HR, Finance, CS) 2.90% 32,681        14,772     11,634        6,200       65,287        33,700        15,300     12,000     6,400       67,400          

Computer Replacement Costs (per 

Schedule) Schedule 386,400      27,100     165,200      80,500     659,200      131,248      91,624     36,088     5,200       264,160        

Direct Costs (Phone, Network, etc) 1.00% 704,694      175,281  271,197      76,829     1,228,001  711,800      177,100  274,000  77,600     1,240,500    

Facilities Costs (Spread by Count) 1.00% 19,782        8,942       7,042          3,753       39,519        20,000        9,100       7,200       3,800       40,100          

Fleet Costs (Spread by Count) 1.00% 3,014          1,362       1,073          572          6,021          3,100          1,400       1,100       600          6,200            

Operations Analyst (Spread by 

Count) 3.00% 65,027        29,391     23,147        12,335     129,900      67,000        30,300     23,900     12,800     134,000        

Shared Costs (Spread by Count) 1.00% 518,755      234,472  184,662      98,406     1,036,295  524,000      236,900  186,600  99,400     1,046,900    

TOTALS 1,730,353  491,320  663,955      278,595  3,164,223  1,490,848  561,724  540,888  205,800  2,799,260    

Pg 3100



TITLE:   Generate Admin Overhead Allocation Percentage  
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/17/2021 REVISED: 06/17/21 
ISSUED BY: FINANCE                                                                    PAGE:  1 OF 1 

 
 

 

 

1. General 
This procedure applies to all IT Consortium members.  The IT Consortium Director and or the Consortium 
Board reserves the right to modify or update this procedure at any time. 

2. Purpose and Objective 
The purpose of this procedure is to describe the process by which the Finance department 
generates the administrative overhead cost allocation percentage for each member district of the IT 
Consortium.  

3. Process and Procedure 
The following steps outline the process to identify relevant costs and the procedure to determine the 
shared percentage of administrative overhead costs per district. 

 

A. Determining Administrative Overhead Costs 
Use most current adopted budget costs for administration, finance, human resources (HR), and central 
stores (CS), as a percentage of total operating budgets to determine the shared portion of 
administrative overhead among district members in the consortium 

B. Process   
1) Generate Budget Report – Powerplan 

a) Current year: “YYYY” 

b) Scenario: “BGT_BA” – Board Approved adopted operating budget 

c) Entity: “GF EMS” ‐ Funds 001 Gen Fund & 101 EMS Fund all divisions 

d) Period: “JAN” ‐ Default 

e) Format: “MONTH” 

f) Account: “T5000‐59999 – TOTAL Exp Fund Bal”  ‐ All operating expenditures 

g) Change view levels: Entities 2, Intermediate 0 

2) Calculate Admin overhead percentage 

a) Identify TOTAL Operational Budget ‐ Take total of Budget report and subtract “Transfers 

(NonDiv)”  

i) Example 2021 = $68,494,426 ‐ $4,651,208 = $63,843,218 

b) Identify SHARED COSTS – Subtotal internal service costs for divisions Admin 200, Finance 201, 

HR 203 & CS 205  

i) Example 2021 = $1,627,920 + $741,963 + $1,429,753 + $222,338 = $4,021,974 

c) Determine Administrative Overhead Allocation Percentage ‐ Divide SHARED COSTS by TOTAL 

Operational Budget  

i) Example 2021 = $4,021,974 / $63,843,218 = 6.3% Admin OH Allocation Percentage 

 

 

101



Draft Pierce County Fire & Rescue IT Consortium Information Services Portfolio – 05/25/21 

Services Description Value Statement Products Pricing   Notable Features 

Workforce 

Productivity 

Providing a 
technology-enabled 
working environment 
for Admin and 
Uniformed Staff to be 
productive and 
collaborative with 
internal and external 
partners 

Increased employee 
productivity via increased 
access to information and 
content creation tools 

 
Increased employee 
satisfaction using state of 
the art tools and technology 
to allow for in-office, 
vehicle, and virtual work  
 
Reduced response time to 
inquiries and requests 

Digital Office 
 

2.5 FTE 
Ratio: 1:340 
 
Current Ratio: 
CP: 1.0 FTE 
GR: 0.5 FTE 
GH: 0.5 FTE 
KP: 0.25 FTE 
 

 Helpdesk Tier 1 and 2 Technical Support 

o Outage, Incident, Break-Fix and Request Desktop 
Support Calls 

o Outage, Incident, Break-Fix and Request Ticket  
and Support 

 At Station Desk-side Tier 2 Technical Support 
o On Site Incident, Break-Fix and Request Service  

and Support 

Hardware 
Support 

Ensuring Admin and 

Uniformed Staff have 

reliable, secure, and 

cost efficient devices 

and platforms to be 

productive while 

meeting the 

expectations of their 

roles 

Increased Admin and 
Uniformed Staff satisfaction 
using state of the art tools 

 
Reduced Cost of operations 
 
Provide Annual Budgetary 
Information for Hardware 
Refresh 

Desktop and 
Vehicle Devices 
 

0.5 FTE 
Ratio: 1:1,700 
 
Current Ratio: 
CP: 0.225 FTE 
GR: 0.11 FTE 
GH: 0.11 FTE 
KP: 0.055 FTE 
 

 Inventory, Procurement, Management, Maintenance, 
Replacement, Repair, Configuration, Builds and Image 
Creation of: 
o Surface Tablets 
o Desktop PCs 
o MDCs (Getac) 
o Laptops 

Cellular Devices 
 

 Inventory, Procurement, Management, Replacement, 
Repair, Configuration, and Administration of: 
o iOS Cell Phones 
o Broadband/MDD Cards 

On-Site Back 
Office Hardware 

 On-Site Servers (as required) 

Network 

Support 

Enabling access to 

local and consortium 

Agency and third 

party data and 

resources on the 

internal network and 

larger internet  

Reliable availability to 
Agency systems 
 
Stable network connection 
for all in station devices 

Data Copper 
and Fiber and 
Network Access 
Internet Access 
Wi-Fi Access  

0.25 FTE 
Ratio: 1:3,400 
 
Current Ratio: 
CP: 0.1155 FTE 
GR: 0.055 FTE 
GH: 0.055 FTE 
KP: 0.275 FTE 
 

 Hardware and Software Inventory, Procurement, 
Management, Maintenance, Replacement, Repair, 
Configuration, Builds, Administration, Service, and 
Support 

 Internet Accessibility 

 UcaaS Desktop Phones 

 Phone Headphones 

 Four-Digit Dialing 

Desk Telephony 

102



Services Description Value Statement Products Pricing   Notable Features 

Digital Media  Enable stakeholder 
access to accurate, 
consistent, and timely 
information about the 
Consortium Agencies 

Reduced Admin/Uniformed 
Staff /citizen inquiries 
 
Improved public visibility 

Consortium 
Agency 
Websites 

0.25 FTE 
Ratio: 1:3,400 
 
Current Ratio: 
CP: 0.1155 FTE 
GR: 0.055 FTE 
GH: 0.055 FTE 
KP: 0.275 FTE 
 

 Administration, Licensing, Maintenance, Replacement, 
Repair, Configuration, Service and Support of: 
o Website(s) 
o Microsites 
o Social Media Platforms 

Data Center 
Management 

Enable internal 
technology service 
providers with 
reliable, secure, and 
cost efficient 
platforms and 
infrastructure 

Improved reliability of 
technology services 

 
Reduced unit cost via scale 

 
Allows technology 
specialization within other 
service providers 

Consortium 
Private Cloud 
Server, Storage, 
Back-Up 
Systems 
Environments 
and 
Infrastructure 

 

0.25 FTE 
Ratio: 1:3,400 
 
Current Ratio: 
CP: 0.1155 FTE 
GR: 0.055 FTE 
GH: 0.055 FTE 
KP: 0.275 FTE 
 

 Physical and Virtual Server computing 

 Data storage 

 Systems and Applications Back-Ups, Hardware and 
Software Inventory, Procurement, Management, 
Licensing, Maintenance, Replacement, Repair, 
Configuration, Builds,  Administration, Service and 
Support 

Consortium 
Data Network 

 

 Data network transport 

 Access controls 

 Hardware and Software Inventory, Procurement, 
Maintenance, Replacement, Repair, Configuration, 
Administration, Service and Support 

Application 
Enablement 

 

 Identity and Access management 

 Web Application Protection – Cisco Firepower 

 Endpoint and Access protection of information and 
information systems against unauthorized access or 
modification of information, and against denial of service 
to authorized users. Information security includes those 
measures necessary to detect, document, and counter 
such threats 

Application 

Support 

Provides access to 

skills, knowledge and 

expertise related to 

administration and 

support or primary 

desktop applications 

Consistent delivery and 
predictable access and use 
of desktop applications 

Desktop 
Applications 
Tier 1 
Applications 

 

0.5 FTE 
Ratio: 1:1,700 
 
Current Ratio: 
CP: 0.225 FTE 
GR: 0.11 FTE 
GH: 0.11 FTE 
KP: 0.055 FTE 
 

 Microsoft Office: 
o Exchange, Word, Excel, Power Point, Publisher,  

Visio 

 Internet Search Engine Access 

 Tier1 Applications 
o Maas 360, ESO, MPS, BIAS, One Solution,  

Telestaff 

 Intranet Applications: 
o SharePoint, InfoPortal, Agency Website(s) 

103



Services Description Value Statement Products Pricing   Notable Features 

Professional 

Services 

Availability and access 

to IT knowledge, 

expertise, and 

professionalism to 

provide project and 

product management 

and delivery 

assistance to business 

units for business 

needs and initiatives 

Reduced external 
consulting, advisory, 
solution costs 

 
Improved outcomes 

 
Faster implementation of 
solutions 

Professional 
Services 
Project 
Management 
Product 
Management 

3.0 FTE 
Ratio: 1:283 
 
Current Ratio: 
CP: 1.35 FTE 
GR: 0.66 FTE 
GH: 0.66 FTE 
KP: 0.33 FTE 
 

 Project Management 

 Product Management 

 Project Delivery 

IT 
Management 
and 
Consulting 

Availability and access 
to IT knowledge, 
expertise and 
professionalism to 
provide advisory, 
consulting, change 
management and 
contracting and 
vendor management 

Reduced risk of technology 
selection, implementation 
and operations 

Change Control 
Technology 
Consulting 
Vendor 
Management 

1.  
2.  

0.5 FTE 
Ratio: 1:1,700 
 
Current Ratio: 
CP: 0.225 FTE 
GR: 0.11 FTE 
GH: 0.11 FTE 
KP: 0.055 FTE 
 

 Business Analysis 

 Options analysis 

 Solution design 

 Technology strategy 

 Change Management 

 Contracting and vendor management  

Agency 
Integration 

Integrate separate 
Agencies into the 
Pierce County IT 
Consortium  

Successful implementation 
connecting multiple 
separate IT 
staff/team/individual(s) 
providing IT services and 
support as a single 
integrated IT Team 

Integration 
Process 

Direct invoice of 
man-hour costs 
and FTE OT cost 

 Requirements gathering 

 Analysis 

 Architecture design 

 Systems/Applications integration design 

 Implementation 

 Ongoing Service and support 

Support 
Services Not 
Provided 

Support or Services 
not included as part of 
the IT Consortium 
Service Portfolio  

Standardized support policy 
offers better consortium 
supportability, a more 
consistent operating 
experience for users, and is 
one component used to 
provide the best and most 
effective use of IT resources. 

 Procurement, Management, Maintenance, Replacement, Repair, Configuration, Builds and  
Image Creation of Mac devices 

 Software Development 

 Existing third-party software development 

 Financial Software 

 One-Off (non-share consortium) Application Software 

 Printers 

 Windows Operating Systems older than Windows 8 

 Non-Domain Joined Devices 

 HVAC, Generators and Security Cameras 

 Personal Electronic Devices 

 Home Support Visits 
 104



25 Year Computer Replacement Costs by District

DISTRICT 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

CPFR 386,400 131,248 458,400 508,407 141,826 199,360

Gig Harbor 165,200 36,088 145,056 245,599 175,156 126,705

Graham 27,100 91,624 232,224 52,089 103,088 121,327

Key Pen 80,500 5,200 13,088 154,803 5,850 14,725

Grand Total 659,200 264,160 848,768 960,898 425,920 462,117

NOTE 1:  Includes GTACs, desktops, and surfaces active in the 90 days prior to 4/9/2021

NOTE 2:  Useful Life ‐ GETAC & Desktops 5 years, Surface 3 years

Replacement Cost by Yr105



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date    August 9, 2021 

Item Title:    Human Resources Division Report 

Attachments:     

Submitted by:   Suzi Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
I will be on vacation today, however, below is a summary of the current work in HR and Chief Olson can 
answer any questions you may have.  
 
Recruitment 

 Fire Chief – The posting closed on July 31st and last week the recruiter began the initial 
vetting of candidates.  She will be presenting candidates to the Review Committee on 
August 12th and the semi-final interviews are scheduled for August 20th. 

 IT Director – we will be conducting first round assessment and interviews next week for 
the top candidates and have the Chief’s panel scheduled for September 2nd and will plan 
to move forward with the top candidate from there.  

 Mechanic – is currently posted through August 15th  

 Lead Mechanic – is currently posted through August 22nd 

 Captain of Logistics – is currently posted through August 22nd 

 Part-time Runner – is currently posted through August 28th  

 Payroll Analyst – we will be posting the position externally and will be working through 
that recruitment process. 

 Network Administrator – we are finishing up the finalization of the job description and 
exam plan with the Local and will be running a recruitment soon for that position 
 

 
Negotiations 

 Local 726 
o Our next session is set for August 10th   

 
 

106



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 08-09-2021 

Item Title: Training Division Report 

Attachments: Click here to enter text. 

Submitted by: AC Juarez 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

   
 

SUMMARY:     

 

 The Training Division is currently working with Logistics and Operations on the in-service 

training plan for the new KME ladder trucks.  

 2021-1 academy is going well; all of the recruits are still present, coming together as a 

team. 

 Both CPFR and GFR training divisions continue to provide training for all suppression 

personnel as it pertains to our day in and day out operational standards. 

 Along with our weekly Fire Ground Ops training, your training division will be providing 

MCI and Special Operations training to all suppression personnel.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

 

 

107



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 08/09/2021 

Item Title:  Division Update – Field Operations 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by: R. Kent 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Ops Goals are on target for Completion 

 Officer Development Content developed and being delivered 

 Battalion Chief KPI (Key Performance Indicators) Report Developed and 
Implemented 

 Implement Building Type SOP’s dictating Strategies and Tactics developed and 
implemented  

 2022 Budget in Process 
2. Planning for a fully-open Washington State Fair in September is making good progress. 
3. Planning for DOC (District Operations Center) move to Station 72 has begun. 
4. Monthly Operations Analytics Report will resume upon analyst return. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

108



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 08/09/2021 

Item Title:  Division Update – Operations Section 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by: E. Stueve / Presented by R. Karns 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. House Bill 1310 was effective 07/25/2021:  

a. This bill is currently interpreted by law enforcement agencies to significantly constrain 
historical use of force parameters. 

2. Our law enforcement partners are actively adapting to this legislation while they continue to 
seek clarity from the state legislature as to intent and impacts. 

3. The summary impact to us: 
a. The real potential exists that due to safety concerns for our personnel, and the perceived 

constraints on law enforcement, a behavioral health patient may not be transported. 
b. Incidents to which LE would have historically responded to based on lower level risk will 

now potentially go unanswered.  Therefore, our personnel, must remain vigilant in 
analyzing dispatch information for risk and be proactive in requesting LE support to 
provide scene safety. 

4. What we have done in response: 
a. Through Chief Video Briefing we’ve messaged our organizational priorities to all 

Operations. 
b. EMS has issued interim direction on the current, adopted best practice agreed to by The 

Department of Health, PCEMS, PC MPD Dr. Waffle & the base station physicians. 
5. What we are actively working on: 

a. Collaboration with LE, and our mutual aid partners to land at a single, uniform, best-
practices guiding document in attempt to ensure standard actions result in standard 
conditions for our personnel, for our patients and so that LE receives a uniform response 
from Fire/EMS.  The result will be delivered through prioritized battalion training. 

 

In summary, this presents significant operational complication which will require surveillance 

and engagement moving forward. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  N/A 

109



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   August 9, 2021 

Item Title:   Fire Chief’s Report   

Attachments:    

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
  

Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve 
 
Board of Fire Commissioners: 
 

1. Benefit Charge:  
a. Chief Karns is back from vacation and will begin working with the 

communication consultant. The first item we want to attend is their 
perspective on the risk of the 6 year versus 10 year authorizations. 
 

2. IT Consortium: ILA is in front of the BOC for review tonight. 
 

3. E911 Funding: A resolution affirming the fire chiefs, fire commissioners, and 
police chiefs desire to see the E911 office and all responsibilities and revenue be 
transferred to SS911. The motion passed 8 to 3. This resolution is now being 
sent to the Pierce County Council for review as the SS911 Director begins 
meetings with Pierce County DEM. 
 

4. Pierce County Council: I continue to meet with councilmembers now to discuss 
the E911 office and revenue. 

 
5. SEPA Appeal: South Sunrise- No additional information at this time. 

 
6. EMS Study: We are now answering questions as Fitch develops options for the 

report. 
 
 

110



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

7. 2022 Budget: The process is moving forward. The DC’s and I have reviewed all 
requests and are finalizing any additional needs for 2022. 
 

8. Speaking at Kiwanas: I will speak at the Puyallup Kiwanis on Thursday. I will 
mainly overview the impact of COVID, improvements to the system over the past 
2 years, and future vision of the EMS study. 
 

9. DFM Police Commissions: Because of the risks associated with recent 
legislative changes impacting law enforcement across Washington State, most 
reserve or limited commissions are ending across the state. The reason is the 
training requirements and risk to the individual and department under new 
definitions and restrictions. As a result, all of CPF&R DFM’s will no longer be 
commissioned. We are working to resolve a requirement of the ATF that canine 
handlers be commissioned. I will update you as this progresses. 

 
10. Armory Property Update: We had a sudden meeting with the Lt Colonel 

overseeing the property who informed us that they will not be able to vacate the 
property until November. The Tumwater facility is held up because of an elevator 
and air flow issue which will delay them for a couple of months. This will not 
impact our progress as the National Guard has been committed to allow us and 
our Architect access to the property. 
 

11. SS911 Building: The new building is at least 50% occupied. They are awaiting 
an elevator inspection to finish the move into the building. Retired Fire Chief 
Duggan has now retired from the Deputy Director position at SS911. This is a 
great loss for us because he understood CPF&R’s needs and influence. There is 
now one Deputy Director over police and fire operations. His background is law 
enforcement. We will see how this works as we move forward. 
 

12. COVID-19: 
a. Emergency Declaration- No changes from previous meeting.  The 

authority has not been exercised during the previous two-week period. I 
will continue to report any uses of the declarations authority. 

b. BOC Meeting Status: Currently remote meetings with a follow up 
discussion for the BOC at the end of August. 

c. We continue to have employees either infected or in quarantine because 
of communal infections. We still have not had an on the job infection. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: n/a 

111


	1 - 2021-08-09 Board Agenda DRAFT
	4B - 07-26 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	4C - 2021_08_09 Warrant Approval
	5A - 21-03_2nd_MidYear Budget Amend_2021_FINAL AIS RES & EXH A
	21-03_2nd__AIS_MidYear Budget Amend_2021b
	21-03_2nd_MidYear Budget Amend Resolution_2021
	21-03_2nd_Mid Year Budget Amend_ExhA_2021-08-09

	7A - DCAD ILA AIS 08.09.21
	7B - DCADConsortiumILAFinal
	7B1 - AIS - IT COnsortium
	7B2 - IT Consortium Draft 5_18_21 Final
	7B5.0 2021 IT CONSORTIUM COST PROPOSAL 6-17-21 Final
	7B5.1 - 2021 Finance Procedure - Generate Admin Overhead
	7B5.2 - IT Consortium Service Portfolio Draft v052521 [Final]
	7B6 - Workstation Inventory ALL 2021-05-13 Final
	8A - AIS HR Report
	8B - AIS - Training 08-09-2021
	8C - AIS Field Ops 8-09-2021
	8E - AIS DC Ops
	8F - AIS - Chief



